

MINUTES

The Minutes of the Council held at the Council Chambers, North Sydney at 6:30 PM on Monday 13 March 2023.



1.	Ope	ening Meeting	4	
2.	Ack	nowledgement of Country	4	
3.	_	Apologies and applications for leaves of absence or attendance by audio- visual link by councillors4		
4.	. Confirmation of Minutes			
5.	Disc	Disclosures of Interest5		
6.	Pub			
7.		ns Considered by Exception		
, . 8.		yoral Minutes		
		•		
	8.1.	MM01: Berrys Bay Masterplan Error! Bookmark not define		
	8.2.	MM02: Quarantine Depot site – Community Pop Up Activation Error! Bookma not defined.	rk	
	8.3.	MM03: Open Space and Recreation Strategy Error! Bookmark not define	d.	
9.	Rep	oorts of Committees 1	.1	
	9.1.	Audit Risk and Improvement Committee Minutes - 1 December 2022 and 3 February 2023	11	
	9.2.	Traffic Committee Minutes - 10 February 2023	12	
10). Rep	oorts to Council 1	4	
	10.1.	Merrett Playground Upgrade - project progress	14	
	10.2.	Planning Proposal 4/22 – Prohibition of residential flat buildings in the R3 Medium Density Residential Zone – Post Exhibition Report		
	10.3.	Infrastructure Mapping Project - Response to Council Resolution	18	
	10.4.	Outdoor Dining Licence Fees - Response to Council Resolution	19	
	10.5.	North Sydney Council Bi-Monthly Waste Clean-Up - Response to Council Resolution	า	
			?0	
	10.6.	Nutcote Conservation Management Plan - Post Exhibition Report	?1	
	10.7.	Milson Park Kayak Storage - Post Exhibition Report	22	
	10.8.	Acceptance of Tender - Tender No 8-2022 for Provision of Security Services	?4	
	10.9.	Legal Costs - IOF Custodians v NSC	?5	
	10.10.	. 2023 Australian Local Government Association Annual Conference (National General Assembly)2	27	

10.11	. Pro-Active Community Education Quarterly Report	29
10.12	. Organisation Structure	.30
10.13	. Policy for use of animal products - Response to Council Resolution	.33
11. Not	tices of Motion	34
11.1.	Notice of Motion 4/23 - Sub Base Platypus - Cr Welch	34
11.2.	Notice of Motion 5/23 - Waverton Bowling Green - Cr Mutton	.35
11.3.	Notice of Motion 6/23 - Trove National Database and Upgrade of Digital Archive Systems - Cr Welch	
12. Ma	tters of Urgency	38
13. Clo	sure	39

1. Opening Meeting

Statement of ethical obligations

Councillors are reminded of the oath or affirmation taken upon commencement of office that they will undertake the duties of the office of councillor in the best interests of the people of North Sydney and the North Sydney Council and that they will faithfully and impartially carry out the functions, powers, authorities and discretions vested in them under the <u>Local Government Act 1993</u> or any other Act to the best of their ability and judgment.

Councillors are also reminded of their obligations under the Code of Conduct to disclose and appropriately manage conflicts of interest.

At the commencement of business (6:30 pm) those present were: The Mayor, and Councillors Beregi, Bourke, , Gibson, Lamb, Lepouris, Mutton, Santer, Spenceley, and Welch.

The meeting was opened by the Mayor.

2. Acknowledgement of Country RECOGNITION OF THE CAMMERAYGAL PEOPLE

We respectfully acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of the land and waters of North Sydney local government area, the Cammeraygal people.

The Acknowledgement of Country was read by Councillor Santer.

3. Apologies and applications for leaves of absence or attendance by audio-visual link by councillors

There were no Apologies.

4. Confirmation of Minutes

THAT THE MINUTES of the 3,775th Council Meeting held on Monday 27 February 2022 be taken as read and confirmed.

The Motion was moved by Councillor Gibson and seconded by Councillor Santer:

- **1. THAT** the following be taken as read and confirmed:
 - Minutes of the 3,775th Council Meeting held on Monday 27 February 2023,
 - Minutes of the 3,776th Extraordinary Council Meeting held on Tuesday 28 February 2023 and
 - Minutes of the 3,777th Extraordinary Council Meeting held on Wednesday 1 March 2023.

The Motion was put and Carried.

Voting was as follows:

For/Against 10/0

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer,

Councillor Spenceley and Councillor Welch

Against: Nil Absent: Nil

69. RESOLVED:

1. THAT the following be taken as read and confirmed:

- Minutes of the 3,775th Council Meeting held on Monday 27 February 2023,
- Minutes of the 3,776th Extraordinary Council Meeting held on Tuesday 28 February 2023 and
- Minutes of the 3,777th Extraordinary Council Meeting held on Wednesday 1 March 2023.

5. Disclosures of Interest

The following Disclosures of Interest were made:

Item 10.4	Outdoor Dining Licence Fees
Councillor Lepouris	Owns a cafe in the area with outdoor dining.
	(Pecuniary)
Item 10.7	Milson Park Kayak Storage
Councillor Welch	Member of Sydney Kayak Share Club and will benefit if approved.
	(Non-Pecuniary, less than significant)

6. Public Forum

The Motion was moved by Councillor Beregi and seconded by Councillor Spenceley:

1. THAT the Public Forum be opened, and that the following items be moved forward as part of the Public Forum:

Item 10.2	Planning Proposal 4/22 – prohibition of residential flat buildings in the R3
	medium Density Residential Zone – Post Exhibition Report
Item 10.7	Milson Park Kayak Storage – Post Exhibition Report
	(Cr Welch Declaration of interest – less than significant non-pecuniary)
Item 11.1	Sub Base Platypus

The Motion was put and Carried.

Voting was as follows: For/Against 10 / 0

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer,

Councillor Spenceley and Councillor Welch

Against: Nil Absent: Nil

70. RESOLVED:

1. THAT the Public Forum be opened, and that the following items be moved forward as part of the Public Forum:

Item 10.2	Planning Proposal 4/22 – prohibition of residential flat buildings in the R3
	medium Density Residential Zone – Post Exhibition Report
Item 10.7	Milson Park Kayak Storage – Post Exhibition Report
	(Cr Welch Declaration of interest – less than significant non-pecuniary)
Item 11.1	Sub Base Platypus
	(Cr Welch Declaration of interest – less than significant non-pecuniary)

7. Items Considered by Exception

It was moved by Councillor Beregi and seconded by Councillor Lamb:

1. THAT the Recommendations for the following items be considered by exception:

Item 9.1	Audit Risk and Improvement Committee Minutes – 1 December 2022 and 3
	February 2023
Item 10.8	Acceptance of Tender 8-2022 for Provision of Security Services
Item 10.9	Legal Costs – IOF Custodians v North Sydney Council
Item 10.11	Pro-Active Community Education Report
Item 10.12	Organisation Structure

The Motion was put and Carried.

Voting was as follows: For/Against 10 / 0

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer,

Councillor Spenceley and Councillor Welch

Against: Nil
Absent: Nil

71. RESOLVED:

1. THAT the Recommendations for the following items be considered by exception:

Item 9.1	Audit Risk and Improvement Committee Minutes – 1 December 2022 and 3
	February 2023
Item 10.8	Acceptance of Tender 8-2022 for Provision of Security Services
Item 10.9	Legal Costs – IOF Custodians v North Sydney Council
Item 10.11	Pro-Active Community Education Report
Item 10.12	Organisation Structure

8. Mayoral Minutes

8.1 MM01: Berrys Bay Masterplan

Council, on behalf of the community, has a clear long-term vision for Berrys Bay and the Waverton Peninsula, first articulated in the Waverton Peninsula Masterplan (Clouston) 1999.

From 30 September to 23 October 2022, Transport for NSW (TfNSW) exhibited a draft "master plan and vision" for Berrys Bay. There was significant community participation in the public exhibition with many submissions supporting the plan.

The Berrys Bay masterplan as finally adopted by the State Government is consistent with the community and Council's long-term vision.

Indeed, the final masterplan is supported by Council and the community.

On 13 February 2023 Council resolved

1. **THAT** Council urgently write to the Premier seeking the immediate transfer of the Berrys Bay foreshore lands held by the State Government to Council prior to the State Election.

On 6 March 2023, a councillor briefing was held in relation to the Berrys Bay Masterplan. The briefing included reference to the concept plans for Berrys Bay prepared by Sydney Heritage Fleet.

The Sydney Heritage Fleet is the trading name of Sydney Maritime Museum Ltd., a public company. The Fleet restores and operates a number of historic vessels including the barque James Craig.

On 22 February 2021, Council relevantly resolved:

2. **THAT** Council, recognising broad community support for the concept plans provided by the Sydney Heritage Fleet for the Museum of Sydney Harbour as the base for its fleet in Berrys Bay, resolves to work with the Sydney Heritage Fleet

and the North Sydney community with a view to making the concept plan a reality.

There is strong and broad community support for the TfNSW Berrys Bay Masterplan. Thousands of residents together with North Sydney Council fought long and hard over many, many ears to resist a commercial marina at Berrys Bay.

Circumstances have changed since the resolution of Council on 22 February 2021. The Sydney Heritage Fleet concept plans are inconsistent with the TfNSW Berrys Bay Masterplan and will result in a larger on-water occupation of the Bay than that previously occupied by Woodleys when it was an operating "working waterfront" site. Further, despite the statement in the 22 February 2021 Council resolution, the concept plans do not have "broad community support". Given that the State Government is committed to delivering the Berrys Bay Masterplan as soon as practicable, I therefore recommend:

I therefore recommend:

- **1.THAT** Council reiterate its support for the Berrys Bay Masterplan and for the State Government's commitment to deliver the planned park at Berrys Bay as soon as possible and commencing later this year.
- **2.THAT** Council clarify its position on the Heritage Fleet concept plans by stating that, in the circumstances of paragraph 1 of this resolution, the plans are no longer supported and that Council resources should no longer be devoted to "work with the Sydney Heritage Fleet and the North Sydney community with a view to making the concept plan a reality".

The Motion was moved by the Mayor.

The Motion was put and Carried.

Voting was as follows:

For/Against 10 / 0

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer,

Councillor Spenceley and Councillor Welch

Against: Nil **Absent:** Nil

72. RESOLVED:

- **1.THAT** Council reiterate its support for the Berrys Bay Masterplan and for the State Government's commitment to deliver the planned park at Berrys Bay as soon as possible and commencing later this year.
- **2.THAT** Council clarify its position on the Heritage Fleet concept plans by stating that, in the circumstances of paragraph 1 of this resolution, the plans are no longer supported and that Council resources should no longer be devoted to "work with the Sydney Heritage Fleet and the North Sydney community with a view to making the concept plan a reality".

8.2 MM02: Quarantine Depot site – Community Pop Up Activation

In 1912 the Australian Army established a Quarantine Depot in Berrys Bay to service the boats operating to and from the Quarantine station at North Head.

In February 2022, after decades of lobbying the State Government, North Sydney Council purchased the Quarantine Depot site from the State Government for \$2.3 million.

There are now two circa 1912 cottages in exceptionally good condition at the site. Council is currently working towards making the site safe for occupation.

Whilst Council is preparing a strategy to guide the medium to long term community use of the site, there is an opportunity to activate the cottages with "Pop Up" community uses to allow access to this incredible foreshore site.

Throughout the pandemic there have been a number of local "Pop Ups" providing arts and cultural opportunities and programmes to address social isolation, build community and support the arts.

Council's Community Strategic Plan identifies arts and culture for focus and expansion.

Therefore, "Pop Up" activation of the site should include arts, crafts and cultural activities.

I therefore recommend:

1.THAT Council investigate and prepare a report on Pop Up activation of the Quarantine Depot cottages at Berrys Bay with a focus on arts and culture.

2.THAT Council prepare a strategy for the medium and long term community use of the Quarantine Depot site.

The Motion was moved by the Mayor.

The Motion was put and Carried.

Voting was as follows:

For/Against 10 / 0

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer,

Councillor Spenceley and Councillor Welch

Against: Nil
Absent: Nil

73. RESOLVED:

1.THAT Council investigate and prepare a report on Pop Up activation of the Quarantine Depot cottages at Berrys Bay with a focus on arts and culture.

2.THAT Council prepare a strategy for the medium and long term community use of the Quarantine Depot site.

8.3 MM03: Open Space and Recreation Strategy

Over the last 40 years the residential and commercial population of the North Sydney local government area has doubled.

In 2009 Council undertook and published the North Sydney Open Space Provision Strategy.

The introduction to the Strategy stated:

"The North Sydney Council area is one of the most densely populated in Australia and with new development both the residential and worker populations are growing.

The uneven distribution of parks and reserves means there is a lack of open space in some areas, particularly in St Leonards, Crows Nest and along Military Road.

This, together with insufficient sporting facilities, a lack of linkages and connections and the small size of many parks, mean that additional open space is required to meet the current and future recreational needs of the community.

The North Sydney Open Space Provision Strategy has been prepared to ensure new land provided for open space meets the needs of the population, providing useful and usable open spaces in areas of population growth and low open space provision, in an economically viable manner."

Fourteen years later, population density has significantly increased and yet open space has not kept pace with the needs of the existing population let alone projected future population.

There have been significant changes in the way we, as a community, use open space and recreational facilities since the Strategy was adopted. In 2019, prior to the pandemic, the NSW Department of Planning and the Environment's Greater Sydney Outdoors study found that:

- 85% of people want to walk/run in parks and open spaces close to home,
- 77% want to relax in open space, and
- 64% want to be able to enjoy a picnic in a park or reserve.

Overall, 70% of Sydneysiders consider open space to be an important factor in their lives. One may argue that in high and medium density areas such as North Sydney that demand is likely to be higher still.

The pandemic reinforced the value and necessity of public open space, parks, playing fields, streets, foreshores, urban bushland, and spaces. Like most local government areas, our community engaged intensely with local spaces and that level of engagement and expectation has not diminished since.

We have also witnessed the devastating loss of public parks, trees and habitat as part of the major toll road projects – a reduction in both area and quality of these spaces. For example, the Warringah Freeway Upgrade and Western Harbour Tunnel project will see the permanent loss of 1.5h hectares of Cammeray Park for the provision of operational sheds.

There are huge challenges to provide new open space within the 11km² of the local government area.

In this context, it is time for Council to review the Strategy and develop a new Open Space and Recreation Strategy to address the challenges and opportunities we face now and into the next decade.

I therefore recommend:

1. THAT Council prioritises the preparation of an Open Space and Recreation Strategy in the 2023/24 operational plan.

The Motion was moved by the Mayor.

The Motion was put and **Carried**.

Voting was as follows:

For/Against 10/0

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer,

Councillor Spenceley and Councillor Welch

Against: Nil **Absent:** Nil

74. RESOLVED:

1. THAT Council prioritises the preparation of an Open Space and Recreation Strategy in the 2023/24 operational plan.

9. Reports of Committees

9.1. Audit Risk and Improvement Committee Minutes - 1 December 2022 and 3 February 2023

AUTHOR: Ian Curry, Manager Council & Committee Services

The purpose of this report is to provide the Minutes of the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee meetings held on 1 December 2022 and 3 February 2023.

This report was presented to the Council meeting of 27 February 2023 but due to an administrative error it was not considered by Council.

In accordance with the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee Charter, attached are the minutes of the meetings of:

- 1 December 2022, and
- 3 February 2023.

The minutes of the 1 December 2022 meeting have been endorsed by the Committee. The minutes of the 3 February 2023 meeting have been endorsed by the Chair and will be reported to the next Committee meeting.

There are no specific matters arising from the meetings referred to Council for adoption.

There are no financial implications to this report.

RECOMMENDATION:

- **1. THAT** the Minutes of the 1 December 2022 Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee meetings be adopted in accordance with the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee Charter.
- **2. THAT** the Minutes of the 3 February 2023 Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee meetings be adopted in accordance with the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee Charter.

This item was considered by exception (see page 7).

75. RESOLVED:

- **1. THAT** the Minutes of the 1 December 2022 Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee meetings be adopted in accordance with the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee Charter.
- **2. THAT** the Minutes of the 3 February 2023 Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee meetings be adopted in accordance with the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee Charter.

9.2. Traffic Committee Minutes - 10 February 2023

AUTHOR: Peita Rose, Governance Officer

Council is required to consider the Minutes of this Committee. Section 5.3.2 of the RMS Delegation to Council for the Regulation of Traffic states that: *All proposals recommended by the LTC must still be formally approved by the elected Council (or their sub-delegate), subject to certain limitations.*

This report presents the recommendations of the last meeting of the Traffic Committee held on 10 February 2023 for Council adoption. The minutes are attached for information.

The full reports to the Traffic Committee can be viewed at https://www.northsydney.nsw.gov.au/Council Meetings/Meetings/Committees/Traffic Committee/2023/10 February 2023.

The financial implications are considered in the individual reports to the Traffic Committee.

RECOMMENDATION:

- **1. THAT** Council write to TfNSW requesting that they prioritise funding for the left-hand turn signal at Wycombe and Yeo Street, Neutral Bay. (6.1)
- **2. THAT** Blues Point Road Vehicle Noise & Traffic Issues stay on the agenda as a standing item, and that it be continually monitored. (6.2)
- **3. THAT** the issue of illegal left turns at intersection of Pacific Hwy and Blue St be referred to TfNSW in relation to line marking, and given that it's a TfNSW Road, Council request that they address pedestrian safety as a result of it being an illegal turn across the highway into Blue Street. (8.1)
- **4. THAT** the matter of parking signs in Kirribilli be referred to Council officers to respond to the resident, investigate if there is an issue with garbage trucks, and investigate as to whether there is a physical change that may be able to assist with safety. (8.2)
- **5. THAT** Council staff be requested to have a closer look at the traffic movements on Rosalind Street, Cammeray East of Miller Street, and that the resident be notified that there has been some interim work in consultation with the contractor of the western freeway to ensure there is something to assist with the Australian Safety standards. (8.3)
- **6. THAT** the location of Pedestrian Crossing on Rosalind Street, Cammeray East of Miller Street be kept on the agenda as a standing item. (8.3)

The Motion was moved by Councillor Welch and seconded by Councillor Gibson.

The Motion was put and Carried.

Voting was as follows:

For/Against 10/0

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer,

Councillor Spenceley and Councillor Welch

Against: Nil
Absent: Nil

76. RESOLVED:

- **1. THAT** Council write to TfNSW requesting that they prioritise funding for the left-hand turn signal at Wycombe and Yeo Street, Neutral Bay. (6.1)
- **2. THAT** Blues Point Road Vehicle Noise & Traffic Issues stay on the agenda as a standing item, and that it be continually monitored. (6.2)
- **3. THAT** the issue of illegal left turns at intersection of Pacific Hwy and Blue St be referred to TfNSW in relation to line marking, and given that it's a TfNSW Road, Council request that they address pedestrian safety as a result of it being an illegal turn across the highway into Blue Street. (8.1)
- **4. THAT** the matter of parking signs in Kirribilli be referred to Council officers to respond to the resident, investigate if there is an issue with garbage trucks, and investigate as to whether there is a physical change that may be able to assist with safety. (8.2)
- 5. THAT Council staff be requested to have a closer look at the traffic movements on Rosalind

Street, Cammeray - East of Miller Street, and that the resident be notified that there has been some interim work in consultation with the contractor of the western freeway to ensure there is something to assist with the Australian Safety standards. (8.3)

6. THAT the location of Pedestrian Crossing on Rosalind Street, Cammeray - East of Miller Street be kept on the agenda as a standing item. (8.3)

10. Reports to Council

10.1. Merrett Playground Upgrade - project progress

AUTHOR: Alicja Batorowicz, Landscape Architect/Project Co-ordinator

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with a progress update on the proposed upgrade of Merrett Playground.

As Merritt Playground was next on the playgrounds list to be refurbished, tenders were called and seven submissions were received on 28 June 2022.

As part of the community feedback, the local Precinct group requested that the project be put on hold until the future of the ex-Waverton Bowling Club's site was determined.

Given the uncertainty re the future land ownership of ex-Waverton Bowling Club, the proximity of the playground to the Club, and the potential influence of the outcome of the land ownership discussions might have on the design of the playground, the project was put on hold.

\$241,436 was allocated in the 2022/23 budget to fund the construction phase of this project. Should this project not proceed, the funds can be returned to the Capital Works Reserve.

RECOMMENDATION:

- **1. THAT** Council cancels the proposal for the contract 5/2022.
- **2. THAT** the unspent funds allocated for the upgrade of Merrett Playground be returned to the Capital Works Reserve.

A Motion was moved by Councillor Beregi and seconded by Councillor Spenceley:

1. THAT Council proceed with the Merrett Playground upgrade.

The Motion was put and **Carried**.

Voting was as follows:

For/Against 10/0

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer,

Councillor Spenceley and Councillor Welch

Against: Nil **Absent:** Nil

77. RESOLVED:

1. THAT Council proceed with the Merrett Playground upgrade.

10.2. Planning Proposal 4/22 – Prohibition of residential flat buildings in the R3 Medium Density Residential Zone – Post Exhibition Report

AUTHOR: Ben Boyd, Executive Strategic Planner

To seek Council's endorsement to progress the planning proposal following consideration of public submissions, such that an amendment to North Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2013 can be made.

At its meeting of 28 March 2022, Council resolved to forward a Planning Proposal (PP 4/22: Council's reference) to the Department of Planning and Environment (DPE), seeking to amend the North Sydney Local Environmental Plan (NSLEP) 2013 to prohibit residential flat buildings in the R3 Medium Density Residential zone.

On 12 August 2022, the Minister for Planning issued a Gateway Determination (PP-2022-1167: DPE's Reference) enabling the Planning Proposal to proceed to public exhibition, subject to meeting a number of conditions.

In accordance with the Gateway Determination, the Planning Proposal was placed on public exhibition for a period of 43 days (30 working days), from 26 September 2022 to Monday 7 November 2022.

152 submissions were received during the exhibition period, of which:

- 121 were in support of the intended outcomes of the Planning Proposal, and
- 31 objected to the intended outcomes of the Planning Proposal.

The key issues raised in the submissions related to:

- impacts on character, heritage and amenity;
- dwelling supply, accessibility and diversity;
- impacts on traffic and parking;
- bulk, scale and height; and
- loss of existing use rights.

Of those that objected, some suggested additional amendments to NSLEP 2013, including:

- amending the savings and transitional clause to remove the need to consider a future amendment as a "draft environmental planning instrument";
- incorporation of a clause to ensure residential flat buildings are permissible for those lands zoned *R3 Medium Density Residential* which currently contain a lawfully approved residential flat building;

- requests for spot rezonings to ensure that residential flat buildings are permissible with consent on the identified lands; and
- amendment of built form controls to enable greater building height.

In light of the submissions made, it is recommended that the Planning Proposal be amended such that the application of both suggested savings provisions are identical, with the view to ensuring DAs (which have been lodged and not determined before any amendment giving effect to the Planning Proposal) are assessed as though the amendment had not been made.

It is further recommended that Council resolves to adopt the Planning Proposal as amended in response to submissions made, and that the amended Planning Proposal be forwarded to the Department of Planning and Environment for approval.

Note: This report was updated on 6 March 2023 in accordance with the Addendum to the Council report.

Progressing and finalising the plan-making process for this Planning Proposal to amend NSLEP 2013 in the manner proposed represents a modest investment in Council resources. These can be accommodated within existing budget lines.

RECOMMENDATION:

- **1. THAT** Council note the submissions made.
- **2. THAT** in response to the submissions made, Council endorse the Planning Proposal, forming Attachment 2 to this report, subject to amending the wording of the first suggested savings provision on Page 9 of the Planning Proposal to read:

If a development application has been made on land in Zone R3 Medium Density Residential before the commencement of North Sydney Local Environment Plan 2013 (Amendment X) and the application has not been finally determined before that commencement, the application must be determined as if that amendment had not commenced.

- **3. THAT** having completed the community consultation requirements outlined in the Gateway Determination, Council forward the Planning Proposal (Attachment 2), as amended by Recommendation 2, to the Department of Planning and Environment with a request that a Local Environmental Plan be made in accordance with section 3.36 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, to give effect to the Planning Proposal.
- **4. THAT** all submitters be advised of Council's resolution.

This item was moved forward as part of the Public Forum (see page 7).

The following people spoke on this item as part of the Public Forum:

- Anne Lytle (local resident)
- Fiona Gracie (local resident and member of Cremorne Conservation Group)
- Sarah Kok (local resident)

A Motion was moved by Councillor Beregi and seconded by Councillor Gibson:

- **1. THAT** Council note the submissions made.
- **2. THAT** in response to the submissions made, Council endorse the Planning Proposal, forming Attachment 2 to this report, subject to amending the wording of the first suggested savings provision on Page 9 of the Planning Proposal to read:

If a development application has been made on land in Zone R3 Medium Density Residential before the commencement of North Sydney Local Environment Plan 2013 (Amendment X) and the application has not been finally determined before that commencement, the application must be determined as if that amendment had not commenced.

- **3. THAT** having completed the community consultation requirements outlined in the Gateway Determination, Council without delay forward the Planning Proposal (Attachment 2), as amended by Recommendation 2, to the Department of Planning and Environment with a request that a Local Environmental Plan be made in accordance with section 3.36 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, to give effect to the Planning Proposal.
- **4. THAT** all submitters be advised of Council's resolution.

The Motion was put and **Carried**.

Voting was as follows:

For/Against 10/0

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer,

Councillor Spenceley and Councillor Welch

Against: Nil Absent: Nil

78. RESOLVED:

- 1. THAT Council note the submissions made.
- **2. THAT** in response to the submissions made, Council endorse the Planning Proposal, forming Attachment 2 to this report, subject to amending the wording of the first suggested savings provision on Page 9 of the Planning Proposal to read:

If a development application has been made on land in Zone R3 Medium Density Residential before the commencement of North Sydney Local Environment Plan 2013 (Amendment X) and the application has not been finally determined before that commencement, the application must be determined as if that amendment had not commenced.

- **3. THAT** having completed the community consultation requirements outlined in the Gateway Determination, Council without delay forward the Planning Proposal (Attachment 2), as amended by Recommendation 2, to the Department of Planning and Environment with a request that a Local Environmental Plan be made in accordance with section 3.36 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, to give effect to the Planning Proposal.
- **4. THAT** all submitters be advised of Council's resolution.

10.3. Infrastructure Mapping Project - Response to Council Resolution

AUTHOR: Neal McCarry, Team Leader - Policy

The purpose of this report is to respond to a Council resolution of 14 November 2022, in relation to Infrastructure Mapping.

This report provides a high-level outline of the current approach to infrastructure funding and planning, and the challenges being experienced.

The report also provides details on the various processes and mechanisms available to help plan for and fund infrastructure delivery, including the St Leonards and Crows Nest Special Infrastructure Contribution (SIC), North Sydney Council Local Infrastructure Contribution Plan 2020, government grants, Voluntary Planning Agreements, and conditions of consent imposed on Development Applications.

No immediate financial implications arise as a result of this report. Longer term, more detailed analysis, mapping, and specialist input may necessitate additional budgetary allocation and internal resourcing.

RECOMMENDATION:

1. THAT Council note the contents of this report.

A Motion was moved by Councillor Bourke and seconded by Councillor Lamb:

- **1. THAT** Council note the contents of this report.
- **2. THAT** a Councillor Briefing be provided on the options to progress points 1 and 2 of the Council resolution of 14 November 2022.

The Motion was put and Carried.

Voting was as follows:

For/Against 10 / 0

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer,

Councillor Spenceley and Councillor Welch

Against: Nil **Absent:** Nil

79. RESOLVED:

- **1. THAT** Council note the contents of this report.
- **2. THAT** a Councillor Briefing be provided on the options to progress points 1 and 2 of the Council resolution of 14 November 2022.

10.4. Outdoor Dining Licence Fees - Response to Council Resolution

AUTHOR: Margaret Palmer Director Corporate Services

The purpose of this report is to inform Council of the cost implications of a fee waiver for outdoor dining from the period of 1 April to 30 September 2023 (six months).

The cost to waive outdoor dining licence fees for the next six months (1 April to 30 September 2023) would be a loss in income of \$375,000.

RECOMMENDATION:

- **1.THAT** Council continues charging outdoor dining licence fees.
- **2.THAT** Council develop a Hardship Policy to provide support to cafes and restaurant that can demonstrate financial distress.

Councillor Lepouris declared a pecuniary interest in the matter (10.4) as he owns a cafe in the area with outdoor dining and left the meeting at 7.35pm.

The Motion was moved by Councillor Welch and seconded by Councillor Beregi.

- **1.THAT** Council continues charging outdoor dining licence fees.
- **2.THAT** Council develop a Hardship Policy to provide support to cafes and restaurant that can demonstrate financial distress.

An Amendment was moved by Councillor Bourke and seconded by Councillor Gibson:

- **1. THAT** Council continues charging outdoor dining licence fees but provides a 25% discount for the six months 1 July 2022 31 December 2022, and for the next six months.
- **2. THAT** Council develop a Hardship Policy to provide support to cafes and restaurant that can demonstrate financial distress.

The Amendment was put and lost.

Voting was as follows: For/Against 4 / 5

For: Councillor Bourke, Councillor Lamb, Councillor Spenceley, and Councillor Welch

Against: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer, and

Councillor Welch

Absent: Councillor Lepouris

The Motion was then put and Carried.

Voting was as follows: For/Against 7/2

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Lamb,

Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer and Councillor Welch

Against: Councillor Gibson and Councillor Spenceley

Absent: Councillor Lepouris

80. RESOLVED:

1.THAT Council continues charging outdoor dining licence fees.

2.THAT Council develop a Hardship Policy to provide support to cafes and restaurants that can demonstrate financial distress.

Councillor Lepouris returned to the meeting at 8.05pm.

10.5. North Sydney Council Bi-Monthly Waste Clean-Up - Response to Council Resolution

AUTHOR: Shivaan Kumar, Waste Management Officer

At its meeting of 12 December 2022, Council resolved:

- 1.THAT Council prepare a report on whether our bi-monthly waste pickup service still meets community expectations.
- 2. THAT the report include suggestions on how we can discourage (or disallow) waste that could be reused, repurposed or repaired being sent to landfill.

This report addresses the Resolution.

There are no financial implications to this report.

RECOMMENDATION:

- **1. THAT** the Council's Pre-booked Household Waste Clean-up Services (Bi-monthly Collection) Report be received.
- **2. THAT** the Council's Pre-booked Household Waste Clean-up Services (Bi-monthly Collection) continue to be provided at the current level.

A Motion was moved by Councillor Bourke and seconded by Councillor Welch:

- **1. THAT** the Council's pre-booked Household Waste Clean-up Services (bi-monthly collection) report be received.
- **2. THAT** the Council's pre-booked Household Waste Clean-up Services (bi-monthly collection) continue to be provided at the current level.
- **3. THAT** Council re-consider the level of services as set out in the tender specification prior to the next tender process.

The Motion was put and Carried.

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer,

Councillor Spenceley and Councillor Welch

Against: Nil **Absent:** Nil

81. RESOLVED:

- **1. THAT** the Council's pre-booked Household Waste Clean-up Services (bi-monthly collection) report be received.
- **2. THAT** the Council's pre-booked Household Waste Clean-up Services (bi-monthly collection) continue to be provided at the current level.
- **3. THAT** Council re-consider the level of services as set out in the tender specification prior to the next tender process.

10.6. Nutcote Conservation Management Plan - Post Exhibition Report

AUTHOR: Ian Hoskins, Council Historian

This report details the submissions received during the public exhibition of the draft *Nutcote Conservation Management Plan*. The final Plan is presented to Council for adoption.

As reported to Council on 12 December 2022, a new *Nutcote Conservation Management Plan* has been prepared, to replace the 2008 version. Nutcote, 5 Wallaringa Avenue Neutral Bay, was the home of artist and author May Gibbs from 1925 until her death in 1969. In 1990, Council bought the property to save it for posterity. The property is operated and managed for Council by the Nutcote Trust, in accordance with a Joint Strategic Plan and a Conservation Management Plan (CMP).

The new CMP confirms that Nutcote is a place of 'exceptional significance' as the workplace and home of May Gibbs. It is significant also as an example of the architectural design of BJ Waterhouse, reflecting the blend of English and Mediterranean elements that he was then embracing.

Nutcote is a State-heritage listed property, and with this status comes the highest responsibility for care, however the CMP acknowledges that not all recommendations or policies are achievable due to resourcing constraints. The CMP is therefore a guide rather than a binding document. Council will however only depart from its recommendations or policies after well-considered reasoning.

The new CMP recommends a modified colour scheme and paint finish, and the 'nomination' of a heritage advisor to monitor, oversee, maintain, and train Council and Nutcote staff and volunteers in day-to-day care of the property.

On 12 December 2022, Council endorsed the public exhibition of the draft Plan for a minimum of 42 days. Public exhibition was undertaken between 14 December 2022 to 31 January 2023. Council received one submission, offering an open statement/comment.

The external painting cost of \$42,250 has been budgeted out of recurrent funding.

RECOMMENDATION:

- **1. THAT** the submissions summary be noted.
- 2. THAT Council adopts the Nutcote Conservation Management Plan.

The Motion was moved by Councillor Beregi and seconded by Councillor Lamb.

The Motion was put and Carried.

Voting was as follows:

For/Against 10/0

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer,

Councillor Spenceley and Councillor Welch

Against: Nil **Absent:** Nil

82. RESOLVED:

- **1. THAT** the submissions summary be noted.
- 2. THAT Council adopts the Nutcote Conservation Management Plan.

10.7. Milson Park Kayak Storage - Post Exhibition Report

AUTHOR: Alicja Batorowicz, Landscape Architect/Project Coordinator

This report details the submissions received during the public exhibition of the proposed Milson Park Kayak Storage. The final recommendation is presented to Council for adoption.

Between 20 September and 31 October 2022, Council sought feedback on a proposed concept plan for a storage facility to hold 36 kayaks at Milson Park, Kirribilli, where there is boat ramp access to Sydney Harbour. A total of 104 submissions were received, as detailed in the attached submission summary. The majority of submissions support the proposal.

This project is in line with Council's *Small Watercraft Storage Strategy (2018)*. Milson Park is one of the sites on Council owned and controlled land along the North Sydney foreshores that can accommodate new formal storage facility. This site does not currently accommodate any informally stored watercraft but will assist with reducing overcrowding, foreshore clutter and damage to the foreshore in other areas.

Council allocated \$25,000 in the 2022/23 budget for the investigation, consultation and design of a small watercraft storage facility in Milson Park, for the benefit of watercraft

owners and the convenience and enjoyment of those who access and use the park for general recreation. The proposed storage location has been chosen to be sympathetic to the park's ecology and not impede foreshore access.

Of the \$25,000 budget allocated to this project, \$1,080 has been spent on a location plan. The remaining \$23,920 is available for the design and acquisition of storage facilities.

RECOMMENDATION:

- **1.THAT** the submissions report be noted.
- 2. THAT the Council endorse the concept plan for kayak storage at Milson Park.
- **3. THAT** 18 hireable spaces be allocated to the Kayak Share Club with the remainder to be allocated to the general community.

This item was moved forward as part of the Public Forum (see page 7).

The following person spoke on this item as part of the Public Forum:

• Loretta Moy (local resident and member of Kayak Share Club)

Councillor Welch declared a less than significant not pecuniary interest in the following item (10.7) as she is a member of the Sydney Kayak Share Club and will benefit if approved and left the meeting at 7.01pm.

The Motion was moved by Councillor Gibson and seconded by Councillor Spenceley.

- **1.THAT** the submissions report be noted.
- **2. THAT** the Council endorse the concept plan for kayak storage at Milson Park.
- **3. THAT** 18 hireable spaces be allocated to the Kayak Share Club with the remainder to be allocated to the general community.

An Amendment was moved by Councillor Beregi and seconded by Councillor Lamb:

1. THAT a site visit be conducted for Councillors, with a further report to come back to Council.

The Amendment was put and **Carried**.

Voting was as follows:

For/Against 6/3

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Lamb,

Councillor Lepouris, and Councillor Santer

Against: Councillor Gibson, Councillor Mutton, and Councillor Spenceley

Absent: Councillor Welch

The Amendment became the Motion.

The Motion was put and Carried.

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Lamb,

Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, and Councillor Santer

Against: Councillor Gibson, and Councillor Spenceley

Absent: Councillor Welch

83. RESOLVED:

1. THAT a site visit be conducted for Councillors, with a further report to come back to Council.

Councillor Welch returned to the meeting at 7.11pm.

10.8. Acceptance of Tender - Tender No 8-2022 for Provision of Security Services

AUTHOR: Joanna Gibson, Team Leader Events

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with the analysis and recommendation of the tender process for Tender 8-2022 Provision of Security Services.

Tenders were called for the submission of tenders for the Provision of Security Services.

If the Council wishes to discuss the report, the meeting should be closed to the public to do so, in accordance with the following section of the *Local Government Act 1993*:

(d)(i) commercial information of a confidential nature that would, if disclosed prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it and because consideration of the matter would, on balance be contrary to the public interest as publication of all tendered amounts would discourage potential tenderers from submitting commercial information in future and would affect Council's ability to obtain value for money services.

Funding for event security is included in the operational budget and has been allowed for in the long-term financial plan.

RECOMMENDATION:

- **1. THAT** Council endorse the appointment of a panel of the three highest scoring Tenderers for Tender 8-2022 to provide security services for New Year's Eve and other Council events.
- **2. THAT** the General Manager be authorised to take any necessary action to implement the decision including entering associated contracts.
- **3. THAT** Council resolves that the identified attachment to this report is to be treated as confidential in accordance with section 11(3) of the Local Government Act for the following reason under section 10A(2) of the Local Government Act:
 - (d) commercial information of a confidential nature that would, if disclosed

(i) prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it It is further noted that release of this information would, on balance be contrary to the public interest as publication of all tendered amounts would discourage potential tenderers from submitting commercial information in future and would affect Council's ability to obtain value for money services.

This item was considered by exception (see page 7).

84. RESOLVED:

- **1. THAT** Council endorse the appointment of a panel of the three highest scoring Tenderers for Tender 8-2022 to provide security services for New Year's Eve and other Council events.
- **2. THAT** the General Manager be authorised to take any necessary action to implement the decision including entering associated contracts.
- **3. THAT** Council resolves that the identified attachment to this report is to be treated as confidential in accordance with section 11(3) of the Local Government Act for the following reason under section 10A(2) of the Local Government Act:
 - (d) commercial information of a confidential nature that would, if disclosed
- (i) prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it It is further noted that release of this information would, on balance be contrary to the public interest as publication of all tendered amounts would discourage potential tenderers from submitting commercial information in future and would affect Council's ability to obtain value for money services.

10.9. Legal Costs - IOF Custodians v NSC

AUTHOR: Shane Sullivan, Executive Manager Governance

The purpose of this report is to seek Council approval for expenditure over \$1,000,000 that has not gone to tender and will be placed on the GIPA report as a class 2 contract on all costs associated with the matter of IOF Custodians v NSC.

Council is the Respondent in Class 1 Appeal Proceedings filed on 1 September 2021 in the Land and Environment Court. IOF Custodian Pty Limited atf the 105 Miller Street North Sydney Trust is the Applicant. The matter is the deemed refusal of DA 147/20 in respect of 105-153 Miller Street North Sydney.

Council's legal expenses for this matter will exceed \$1,000,000. Legal services to Council are procured through a panel appointed through a competitive procurement process. Expenditure up to \$1,000,000 under the Procurement Policy can be by way of quotations from a panel. Where expenditure is over \$1,000,000 Council is the approval authority. For this reason, Council approval is being sought for the additional expenditure in this matter.

Reasons for this level of expenditure are due to the length of the hearing and the expert evidence required.

Should Council wish to discuss this report it is noted that the attached confidential document includes commercial information that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it. Further, release of the information would, on balance be contrary to the public interest as publication of provided amounts would discourage potential providers from submitting commercial information in future and would affect Council's ability to obtain value for money services. As such should this matter be discussed it should be considered in closed session

The total cost for this matter is estimated to be \$1,296,705.60.

An adjustment to the budget for legal costs was approved as part of the December Quarterly Budget review. Consideration as to whether a further adjustment is required will be done as part of the March Quarterly Budget review.

RECOMMENDATION:

- **1. THAT** Council endorse the exemption of tendering in relation to the matter of IOF Custodians v NSC for the reasons set out in this report.
- **2. THAT** Council approve all works associated with the matter of IOF Custodians v NSC be placed on the GIPA register as a class 2 contract (No tender process) in accordance with the Government Information (Public Access) Act.
- **3. THAT** Council resolves that the identified attachment to this report is to be treated as confidential in accordance with section 11(3) of the Local Government Act for the following reason under section 10A(2) of the Local Government Act:
 - (d) commercial information of a confidential nature that would, if disclosed (i) prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it

It is further noted that release of this information would, on balance be contrary to the public interest as publication of all provided amounts would discourage potential providers from submitting commercial information in future and would affect Council's ability to obtain value for money services.

This item was considered by exception (see page 7).

85. RESOLVED:

- **1. THAT** Council endorse the exemption of tendering in relation to the matter of IOF Custodians v NSC for the reasons set out in this report.
- **2. THAT** Council approve all works associated with the matter of IOF Custodians v NSC be placed on the GIPA register as a class 2 contract (No tender process) in accordance with the Government Information (Public Access) Act.
- **3. THAT** Council resolves that the identified attachment to this report is to be treated as confidential in accordance with section 11(3) of the Local Government Act for the following reason under section 10A(2) of the Local Government Act:
 - (d) commercial information of a confidential nature that would, if disclosed (i) prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it

It is further noted that release of this information would, on balance be contrary to the public interest as publication of all provided amounts would discourage potential providers from submitting commercial information in future and would affect Council's ability to obtain value for money services.

10.10.2023 Australian Local Government Association Annual Conference (National General Assembly)

AUTHOR: Ian Curry, Manager Council & Committee Services

To consider the appointment of delegates to attend the 2023 National General Assembly and any proposed Motions.

The 2023 Australian Local Government Association (ALGA) National General Assembly (NGA) will be held in Canberra from 13 to 16 June 2023.

The <u>theme</u> for this year's NGA will be "Our Communities, Our Future". ALGA is seeking <u>motions</u> that align with this theme and identify opportunities for new federal programs and policies that will support councils to build stronger communities. Motions are due by 24 March 2023.

In addition, Council may resolve the appointment of delegates to attend the 2023 National General Assembly. The early bird deadline for registrations is 18 May 2023.

The standard registration cost for each delegate is \$895 to attend in person and \$689 to attend virtually. Funding for attendance is provided for in accordance with the Councillor Expenses and Facilities Policy.

RECOMMENDATION:

1.THAT Council considers any proposed Motions for submission to the Conference, noting the deadline of 24 March 2023.

A Motion was moved by Councillor Beregi and seconded by Councillor Welch:

1. THAT the following Motions be submitted to the ALGA Conference:

Electric Vehicles – National Standards for pedestrian safety

THAT ALGA lobby the Commonwealth Government to issue National Standards for electric vehicles to be required to be fitted with some form of audible signal to alert pedestrians to the presence of the vehicle.

Diverse and affordable housing

THAT ALGA continue to lobby for Commonwealth support and delivery of diverse and affordable housing across metropolitan, regional and rural communities to address the housing crisis and provide for inter-generational equity.

THAT the Commonwealth Government partner with local government to identify opportunities for delivery of such housing across the nation.

Electrification towards Net Zero

THAT ALGA lobby the Commonwealth Government to partner with local government via grants and education campaigns to actively assist communities to electrification in order to meet Net Zero targets.

Urban Forest/Canopy

THAT ALGA lobby the Commonwealth Government to provide grant assistance to councils to target increasing urban forest and tree canopy cover to address urban heat island effect, provide habitat and address net zero emissions targets.

The Motion was put and Carried.

Voting was as follows:

For/Against 10/0

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer,

Councillor Spenceley and Councillor Welch

Against: Nil **Absent:** Nil

86. RESOLVED:

1. THAT the following Motions be submitted to the ALGA Conference:

Electric Vehicles – National Standards for pedestrian safety

THAT ALGA lobby the Commonwealth Government to issue National Standards for electric vehicles to be required to be fitted with some form of audible signal to alert pedestrians to the presence of the vehicle.

Diverse and affordable housing

THAT ALGA continue to lobby for Commonwealth support and delivery of diverse and affordable housing across metropolitan, regional and rural communities to address the housing crisis and provide for inter-generational equity.

THAT the Commonwealth Government partner with local government to identify opportunities for delivery of such housing across the nation.

Electrification towards Net Zero

THAT ALGA lobby the Commonwealth Government to partner with local government via grants and education campaigns to actively assist communities to electrification in order to meet Net Zero targets.

Urban Forest/Canopy

THAT ALGA lobby the Commonwealth Government to provide grant assistance to councils to target increasing urban forest and tree canopy cover to address urban heat island effect, provide habitat and address net zero emissions targets.

10.11. Pro-Active Community Education Quarterly Report

AUTHOR: Greg Sherlock, Planning and Development Advisor

Council, at its meeting of 8 August 2022, resolved that a quarterly report be provided to update Council on the progress of the return to proactive community education regarding the planning process, including specific tasks undertaken.

This report gives an overview of the progress of Council's planning advisory service to the return to pre-COVID service levels with regards to community engagement and expansion of engagement through Council's existing Planning Advisor role.

Council, at its meeting of 23 May 2022, recognised the significant and growing community concern about the sentiment of overdevelopment in the North Sydney Council local government area. Council further recognised that community members find it difficult to understand the New South Wales (NSW) planning system and their rights against often well-resourced property developers.

On 8 August 2022 a report to Council addressed the complexity of the planning process in NSW and how Council would address community engagement through the existing resource of the planning advisory service.

On 14 November 2022 a further report to Council outlined out the how Council's Planning Advisory service would seek to engage with the community. This report provides an update of how the community engagement work is progressing.

Prior to the next quarterly report to Council a Councillor workshop is proposed to be arranged, to establish a clear understanding of the objectives and expectations Councillors wish to achieve under this initiative. The results of that workshop will inform the content of what is reported to Council in the future.

No additional financial implications are envisaged.

RECOMMENDATION:

- **1. THAT** the report be received.
- **2. THAT** a Councillor workshop be held to inform the ongoing objectives and expectations of this initiative and the subsequent reporting requirements.

This item was considered by exception (see page 7).

87. RESOLVED:

- **1. THAT** the report be received.
- **2. THAT** a Councillor workshop be held to inform the ongoing objectives and expectations of this initiative and the subsequent reporting requirements.

10.12. Organisation Structure

AUTHOR: Therese Manns, General Manager

The purpose of this report is to facilitate the Council's review of the organisational structure in accordance with Section 333 of the *Local Government Act 1993*.

A review of Council's organisational structure following an election is a best practice, to ensure the structure aligns with the future direction of the Council. It is also a legislative requirement to undertake this review within 12 months of an election.

Section 322 of the Local Government Act (the Act) provides:

- (1) A council must, after consulting the general manager, determine the following
 - a. The senior staff positions within the organisation structure of the council
 - b. The roles and reporting lines of holders of senior staff positions,
 - c. The resources to be allocated towards employment of staff

It is important that the organisational structure is designed in a way that enables delivery of Council's strategic direction while also supporting operational objectives.

Council resolved at the 30 January 2023 meeting to endorse a draft structure incorporating three divisions. This is a move away from a six-divisional structure and is the first step towards a more holistic review of operational structures.

This review relates to the high-level senior structure of the Council. Organisational structure review below senior staffing level is undertaken by the General Manager in consultation with staff and should be considered an operational workforce function on a regular basis. Where functions move between directorates, this would be reported to Council.

To recap on the January report, the functions of each senior staff member under the current structure are as follows in Diagram 1.

Diagram 1 – current structure



The draft structure endorsed for consultation with staff was as follows in Diagram 2. This structure was developed following a review of strategy, decision-making, leadership frameworks, and staff engagement surveys. A three-directorate structure is common in local government organisations of comparable size to North Sydney, with most consisting of three

(3) to four (4) directorates. Council's strategic framework, culture and relevant operational structures require improvement prior to considering a fourth directorate.

Diagram 2 – draft structure submitted to 30 January 2023 Ordinary Meeting

General Manager

Organisation Development

Community & Planning

- Administrative Services
- Development Assessment
- Environment and Building Compliance
- Strategic Planning
- Ranger & Parking Services
- Community Development
- Library Services
- Environmental Services

City Services & Assets

- Asset Management
- Engineering Infrastructure
- Project Management
- Property Assets
- Traffic & Transport
- Works Engineering
- Landscape Planning & Design
- · North Sydney Oval
- North Sydney Olympic Pool
- Parks & Reserves

Corporate Services

- Communication & Events
- Contracts Management
- Customer Service & Records Management
- Financial Services
- People & Culture
- Information Technology
- Procurement
- Council and Committee Services
- Corporate Planning and Engagement
- Legal Services
- Risk Management/WHS

Consultation was undertaken with staff between 20 January and 1 March 2023. This consultation included individual meetings with affected staff, a meeting of the broader leadership team and 16 General Manager forums which all staff were invited to attend. Staff Unions were advised of the proposed change 20 January 2023 and were provided with access to the Council report outlining the change. Council's decision to endorse for consultation was confirmed by email on 2 February 2023.

There has been an overall positive response to the change in leadership structure, with three responses raising concern about the synergy between community development, libraries, and planning. In total 11 written responses were received.

Positive responses to the consultation include support of breaking down silos, collaborating more as one team. It was noted that the basis for change was clearly articulated, and the reasoning was sound.

Most of the content of responses focused on areas outside the scope of this change process. This included a desire for business unit name changes and structural change under senior level in some areas, a desire for improved workplace accommodation, system and process improvements, resourcing, and performance appraisal systems. This feedback will be taken into consideration as we embark on a holistic review and improvement program for the organisation.

Concerns regarding the synergy between community development, libraries and planning are noted. This concern is reflective of the diversity of Council services, however, based upon current operations, a Division containing only two business units is unwarranted. While synergies may not be obvious, it is anticipated that there will be broader benefits associated with a streamlined structure. As mentioned in the previous Council report, a fourth Division may be considered in the future as the Council further develops its strategic direction and services increase.

In response to feedback, the following changes have been made to the draft divisional structure:

- 1. a name change resulting in one Division being titled 'Community, Planning and Environment';
- 2. a name change resulting in one Division being called 'Open Space and Infrastructure';
- 3. a name change resulting in one Division being called 'Corporate Support'; and
- 4. Legal Services being removed from the 'Corporate Support' division and reporting directly to the General Manager.

In addition to changes to the divisional structure, the Organisation Development function has been changed to Organisation Performance. This was in response to feedback that organisation development is often considered a function of human resources rather than business improvement and organisation performance which was the intention of this new role.

Diagram 3 – recommended Organisation Structure

General Manager

Organisation Performance

Legal Services

Community, Planning & Environment

- Administrative Services
- Development Assessment
- Environment and Building Compliance
- Strategic Planning
- Ranger & Parking Services
- Community Development
- Library Services
- Environmental Services

City Services & Assets

- Asset Management
- Engineering Infrastructure
- Project Management
- Property Assets
- Traffic & Transport
- Works Engineering
- Landscape Planning & Design
- North Sydney Oval
- North Sydney Olympic Pool
- Parks & Reserves

Corporate Services

- Communication & Events
- Contracts Management
- Customer Service & Records Management
- Financial Services
- People & Culture
- Information Technology
- Procurement
- Council and Committee Services
- Corporate Planning and Engagement
- Risk Management/WHS

Should Council adopt the recommended structure, advertising for the new Director positions will commence with a view to appointments being made in early May 2023, after which time the new structure will be implemented.

Upon a review of savings in employment costs to date, it is anticipated that the costs related to the change in structure can be funded from current employee cost budgets.

It is not anticipated that there will be ongoing savings as a result of this structural change, due to the need for additional positions within the structure under the senior executive level.

The net present value of the change in structure over a ten-year period is estimated at around \$8 million. The value is expected to be translated through improved strategy development and delivery of services.

RECOMMENDATION:

1.THAT Council adopts a change in organisation structure resulting in the reduction of senior staff from six (6) to three (3) with functions in accordance with Diagram 3 within the report. This item was considered by exception (see page 7).

88. RESOLVED:

1.THAT Council adopts a change in organisation structure resulting in the reduction of senior staff from six (6) to three (3) with functions in accordance with Diagram 3 within the report.

10.13. Policy for use of animal products - Response to Council Resolution

AUTHOR: Ian Hoskins, Council Historian

To respond to Council's resolution of 12 December 2022 concerning Council's use of leather and fur products.

Leather and fur products such as shoes and Mayoral robes lined with mock sable fur are held within Council's Historical Services Collection and, in the past, have been used in civic events. The collection also has many pairs of leather shoes, three 19th century fans made from ostrich feathers, an ostrich feather boa from the 1920s and so forth.

This report recommends adherence to the existing Historical Services Collection Management and Deaccession Policies with regards to the acquisition, retention, display and 'retiring' of items containing leather and fur.

There are no financial implications in relation to this matter.

RECOMMENDATION:

- **1. THAT** Council notes the existing Collection Management and Deaccession Policy and its applicability to leather and fur products of historical significance.
- **2. THAT** no further policy be required.

The Motion was moved by Councillor Lamb and seconded by Councillor Beregi.

The Motion was put and Carried.

Voting was as follows:

For/Against 10/0

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer,

Councillor Spenceley and Councillor Welch

Against: Nil **Absent:** Nil

89. RESOLVED:

1. THAT Council notes the existing Collection Management and Deaccession Policy and its applicability to leather and fur products of historical significance.

2. THAT no further policy be required.

11. Notices of Motion

11.1. Notice of Motion 4/23 - Sub Base Platypus - Cr Welch

- **1.THAT** North Sydney Council write to the Sydney Harbour Trust to:
 - a) ask for an update as to when construction on the water related facilities such as landing pontoons for boats, kayaks and stand up paddleboards will begin.
 - b) pursue the possibility of having a 50m Harbour pontoon pool, with night lighting and water features for children at the Sub Base Platypus site.
 - c) pursue the possibility of having a regional art gallery that would embrace the Harbour at the Sub Base Platypus Site.

This item was moved forward as part of the Public Forum (see page 5).

The following person spoke on this item as part of the Public Forum:

Loretta Moy (local resident and member of Kayak Share Club)

A Motion was moved by Councillor Welch and seconded by Councillor Beregi:

- **1.THAT** North Sydney Council write to the Sydney Harbour Trust, the Honourable Tanya Plibersek MP, and Federal Member Kylie Tink to:
 - a) ask for an update as to when construction on the water-related facilities such as landing pontoons for boats, kayaks and stand-up paddleboards will begin.
 - b) pursue the possibility of having a 50m Harbour pontoon pool, with night lighting and water features for children at the Sub Base Platypus site.
 - c) pursue the possibility of having a regional art gallery that would embrace the Harbour at the Sub Base Platypus Site.

2. THAT Council collaborate with the Sydney Harbour Trust to provide improved community facilities on the site.

The Motion was put and **Carried**.

Voting was as follows:

For/Against 10/0

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer,

Councillor Spenceley and Councillor Welch

Against: Nil
Absent: Nil

90. RESOLVED:

1.THAT North Sydney Council write to the Sydney Harbour Trust, the Honourable Tanya Plibersek MP, and Federal Member Kylie Tink to:

- a) ask for an update as to when construction on the water-related facilities such as landing pontoons for boats, kayaks and stand-up paddleboards will begin.
- b) pursue the possibility of having a 50m Harbour pontoon pool, with night lighting and water features for children at the Sub Base Platypus site.
- c) pursue the possibility of having a regional art gallery that would embrace the Harbour at the Sub Base Platypus Site.
- **2. THAT** Council collaborate with the Sydney Harbour Trust to provide improved community facilities on the site.

11.2. Notice of Motion 5/23 - Waverton Bowling Green - Cr Mutton

1.THAT Council notes:

- i. The land generally known as Waverton Bowling Green was:
 - a. Part of Waverton Park and vested in the Crown and dedicated for public recreation in 1943.
 - b. Leased to an entity (Trustees of Waverton Bowling and Recreation Club and later the North Sydney Club) for use as a lawn bowling facility in 1967.
 - c. Made available to the North Sydney community for recreational use by licence arrangement with the State Government following the appointment of an administrator to the North Sydney Club.
 - d. The subject of a claim made by the Aboriginal Land Council made under the Aboriginal Land Rights Act 1983 which claim was rejected by the Minister Administering the Crown Land Management Act 2016(NSW) New South Wales which rejection was successfully appealed to the Land and Environment Court of New South Wales.
- ii. Council has the power to resume Crown land and land the subject of native title rights and interests subject to the payment of compensation under the Land Acquisition (Just Terms Compensation) Act 1991.
- iii. Waverton Bowling Green is presently zoned for use aligned to public recreation.

2.THAT Council resolves:

- i. To exercise its powers under the Local Government Act 1993 and seek to compulsorily acquire the Waverton Bowling Green being the land the subject of the decision of the Land and Environment Court of NSW dated 3 November 2022 in the matter New South Wales Aboriginal Land Council v Minister Administering the Crown Land Management Act re Waverton Bowling Club [2022] NSWLEC 130 (3 November 2022).
- ii. Request the State Government to reimburse Council for its costs of compulsorily acquiring the Waverton Bowling Green.
- iii. Re-incorporate the acquired land into Waverton Park.

The Motion was moved by Councillor Mutton and seconded by Councillor Gibson

1.THAT Council notes:

- i. The land generally known as Waverton Bowling Green was:
 - a. Part of Waverton Park and vested in the Crown and dedicated for public recreation in 1943.
 - b. Leased to an entity (Trustees of Waverton Bowling and Recreation Club and later the North Sydney Club) for use as a lawn bowling facility in 1967.
 - c. Made available to the North Sydney community for recreational use by licence arrangement with the State Government following the appointment of an administrator to the North Sydney Club.
 - d. The subject of a claim made by the Aboriginal Land Council made under the Aboriginal Land Rights Act 1983 which claim was rejected by the Minister Administering the Crown Land Management Act 2016(NSW) New South Wales which rejection was successfully appealed to the Land and Environment Court of New South Wales.
 - Council has the power to resume Crown land and land the subject of native title rights and interests subject to the payment of compensation under the Land Acquisition (Just Terms Compensation) Act 1991.
 - ii. Waverton Bowling Green is presently zoned for use aligned to public recreation.

2.THAT Council resolves:

- i. To exercise its powers under the Local Government Act 1993 and seek to compulsorily acquire the Waverton Bowling Green being the land the subject of the decision of the Land and Environment Court of NSW dated 3 November 2022 in the matter New South Wales Aboriginal Land Council v Minister Administering the Crown Land Management Act re Waverton Bowling Club [2022] NSWLEC 130 (3 November 2022).
- ii. Request the State Government to reimburse Council for its costs of compulsorily acquiring the Waverton Bowling Green.
- iii. Re-incorporate the acquired land into Waverton Park.

An Amendment was moved by Councillor Welch and seconded by Councillor Beregi:

- **1. THAT** Council write to the Premier asking for the State Government to acquire the Waverton Bowling Green, properly compensate the Metropolitan Aboriginal Land Council, and transfer care and control to North Sydney Council.
- **2. THAT** Council write to the Leader of the Opposition seeking a commitment that, if elected, they would acquire the Waverton Bowling Green, properly compensate the Metropolitan Aboriginal Land Council, and transfer care and control to North Sydney Council.

The Amendment was put and Carried.

Voting was as follows:

For/Against 9/0

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Santer, Councillor Spenceley

and Councillor Welch

Against: Councillor Mutton

Absent: Nil

The Amendment became the Motion.

The Motion was put and Carried.

Voting was as follows:

For/Against 10/0

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer,

Councillor Spenceley and Councillor Welch

Against: Nil **Absent:** Nil

91. RESOLVED:

- **1.THAT** Council write to the Premier asking for the State Government to acquire the Waverton Bowling Green, properly compensate the Metropolitan Aboriginal Land Council, and transfer care and control to North Sydney Council.
- **2. THAT** Council write to the Leader of the Opposition seeking a commitment that, if elected, they would acquire the Waverton Bowling Green, properly compensate the Metropolitan Aboriginal Land Council, and transfer care and control to North Sydney Council.

11.3. Notice of Motion 6/23 - Trove National Database and Upgrade of Digital Archive Systems - Cr Welch

- **1.THAT** Council make representation to the local Federal Member, Kylea Tink, in relation to the need for a sustainable federal funding model for the continuation of free access to the Trove national database and upgrade of the digital archive systems of Trove.
- **2.THAT** Council write to the Hon. Tony Burke, Federal Minister for the Arts and the Hon. Paul Fletcher, Shadow Minister for Science, and the Arts, calling for sustainable funding to ensure the continuation of free access to the Trove national database and upgrade of the digital archive systems of Trove.
- **3.THAT** Council endorse the actions of the NSW Public Libraries Association in lobbying for additional sustainable funds for the continuation of free access to the Trove national database and upgrade of the digital archive systems of Trove.

The Motion was moved by Councillor Welch and seconded by Councillor Lamb.

The Motion was put and Carried.

Voting was as follows:

For/Against 10/0

For: Councillor Baker, Councillor Beregi, Councillor Bourke, Councillor Gibson,

Councillor Lamb, Councillor Lepouris, Councillor Mutton, Councillor Santer,

Councillor Spenceley and Councillor Welch

Against: Nil **Absent:** Nil

92. RESOLVED:

- **1.THAT** Council make representation to the local Federal Member, Kylea Tink, in relation to the need for a sustainable federal funding model for the continuation of free access to the Trove national database and upgrade of the digital archive systems of Trove.
- **2.THAT** Council write to the Hon. Tony Burke, Federal Minister for the Arts and the Hon. Paul Fletcher, Shadow Minister for Science, and the Arts, calling for sustainable funding to ensure the continuation of free access to the Trove national database and upgrade of the digital archive systems of Trove.
- **3.THAT** Council endorse the actions of the NSW Public Libraries Association in lobbying for additional sustainable funds for the continuation of free access to the Trove national database and upgrade of the digital archive systems of Trove.

12. Matters of Urgency

Nil

13. Closure			
The Meeting concluded at 8:41 pm.			